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2020
26,637,089.55 99.12
237,159.07 0.88
26,874,248.62
2.872 100.00

2020

Western Asset Offshore Funds
-Western Asset Bank Loan 326,635 95.31 |31,130,577.16 81.55 |26,637,089.55 99.12
(Offshore) Fund - USD class
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30
2020
) ( ) ( ) ( ) ()

1 SEUURSIDON LLC ASUCORTL B2 7.72 | 2025/ / 750,000.00 719,888.00 727,643.84 2.21
VERSCEND HOLDING CORP

2 VCVHHO TL B 1L USD 6.08 | 2025/ /27 568,556.96 547,600.00 538,928.62 1.63
HUSKIES PARENT INC

3 INSTRY TL 1L USD 4.54 | 2026/ / 498,750.00 496,256.00 477,614.14 1.45
NEXSTAR BROADCASTING

4 INC NXST TL B 1L USD 2.95 | 2026/ /19 497,243.76 479,305.00 470,181.70 1.43
DELTA AIR LINES INC DAL

5 TL B 1L USD 5.75 | 2023/ /29 470,000.00 455,900.00 468,580.60 1.42

6 .?.t%BLAbSTDEL LINK GLOLIN 9.71 | 2026/11/29 530,000.00 520,750.00 436,377.03 1.32
ANVIL INTERNATIONAL

7 LLC ANVINT TL 2L USD 10.46 | 2027/ /28 550,000.00 522,500.00 431,024.00 1.31
FOCUS FINANCIAL

8 PARTNERS LLC FOCS TL B3 2.44 | 2024/ / 428,908.63 421,091.00 410,440.58 1.24
1L USD

9 US RENAL CARE 6.45 | 2026/ /26 428,074.44 422,167.00 407,035.03 1.23
AIR MEDICAL GROUP

10 | HOLDINGS AIMEGR TL B 1L 5.25 | 2025/ /14 442,638.20 423,990.00 403,659.04 1.22
USD
CSC HOLDINGS LLC

11 CSCHLD TL B 1L USD 2.80 | 2027/ /15 418,950.00 418,950.00 403,221.74 1.22
MEDICAL SOLUTIONS

12 HOLDIN MEDSOH TL 1L USD 6.02 | 2024/ /14 427,850.00 423,572.00 402,244.37 1.22
REGIONALCARE HOSPITAL

13 | PRTNRS RGCARE TL B 1L 4.38 | 2025/11/16 430,000.00 417,950.00 400,426.91 1.21
usb
COVENANT SURGICAL

14 | PARTNERS COVSUR TL B 1L 4.30 | 2026/ / 467,652.94 462,976.00 394,055.81 1.19
USD
WYNN RESORTS FINANCE

15 LLC WYNAME TL A 1L USD 2.42 | 2024/ /20 419,250.00 417,678.00 393,074.13 1.19

16 ?EP]-RLOngTS INC ACPROD 7.50 | 2025/ / 430,000.00 433,400.00 391,123.12 1.19
SEDGWICK CMS INC

17 SEDGEW TL B 1L USD 4.70 | 2025/12/31 415,533.05 400,000.00 384,910.38 1.17

18 LESLIE"S POOLMART LESL 5.08 | 2023/ /16 435,205.93 429,007.00 383,257.30 1.16
TL B 1L USD
TKC HOLDINGS INC

19 TKCHOL TL 2L USD 9.00 | 2024/ / 449,945.93 438,547.00 374,242.52 1.13

20 -Elg—_leﬁéEE USA INC TMUS TL 3.30 | 2027/ / 370,000.00 364,450.00 368,612.50 1.12
ENDO INTERNATIONAL PLC

21 ENDP TL B 1L USD 5.09 | 2024/ /27 398,974.36 368,397.00 365,990.70 1.11
AQGEN ISLAND

22 | INTERMEDIATE ASCENS TL 5.45 | 2022/12/ 383,838.30 377,524.00 365,463.44 1.11
1L USD
GLOBALTRANZ

23 | ENTERPRISES GLOTRA TL 5.44 | 2026/ /15 473,346.15 463,879.00 362,622.44 1.10
1L USD
MISTER CAR WASH

24 | HOLDINGS INMISCARTL 1L 3.94 | 2026/ /14 416,950.02 416,081.00 358,729.95 1.09
USD
8TH AVENUE FOOD & PROVI

25 POST TL 2L USD 9.19 | 2026710/ 380,000.00 382,488.00 356,524.03 1.08

26 ﬁggFEE LLC NCAFEE TL 2L 9.95 | 2025/ /28 363,181.82 360,188.00 355,201.91 1.08
DEERFIELD DAKOTA

27 HOLDING LLC 9.00 | 2028/ /14 400,000.00 394,000.00 354,900.00 1.08
MAVERICK PURCHASER SUB

28 L AECMAN TL B 1L USD 4.30 | 2027/ / 360,000.00 358,200.00 346,544.04 1.05

29 _l:I_EXlUEUBSUJER LLC NEXBUY 3.95 | 2026/11/ 349,125.00 347,379.00 341,443.29 1.04
WP CPP HOLDINGS LLC

30 CONSPR TL 2L USD 8.75 | 2026/ /30 500,000.00 495,650.00 341,382.36 1.04
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2020
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2019 2020
2014 12 119,151,181.61 12,733,687 96.29 10,291
2015 12 82,972,376.15 8,867,258 85.23 9,109
2016 12 80,858,006.23 8,641,295 88.80 9,490
2017 12 77,688,105.95 8,302,528 87.62 9,364
2018 12 56,428,164.27 6,030,478 83.17 8,888
2019 12 23,880,520.20 2,552,111 84.20 8,998
2019 35,519,572.04 3,795,977 85.63 9,151
35,411,173.98 3,784,392 85.37 9,123
34,677,691.83 3,706,005 85.46 9,133
34,070,242.01 3,641,087 85.02 9,086
33,968,151.03 3,630,176 84.87 9,070
10 32,623,392.95 3,486,462 83.84 8,960
11 24,789,556.54 2,649,260 83.85 8,961
12 23,880,520.20 2,552,111 84.20 8,998
2020 21,523,993.44 2,300,269 84.58 9,039
19,932,386.93 2,130,174 83.26 8,898
17,063,954.43 1,823,625 73.29 7,833
17,508,455.71 1,871,129 75.30 8,047
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2019 2020
2015 12 25,611,183.66 2,737,067 92.33 9,867
2016 12 31,194,617.07 3,333,769 100.15 10,703
2017 12 52,200,367.62 5,578,653 102.16 10,918
2018 12 30,452,304.61 3,254,438 100.61 10,752
2019 12 11,359,392.67 1,213,978 106.52 11,384
2019 29,416,657.82 3,143,758 105.38 11,262
29,228,319.21 3,123,630 105.46 11,271
27,959,662.42 2,988,049 105.99 11,327
23,153,290.66 2,474,392 105.87 11,314
23,200,913.49 2,479,482 106.08 11,337
10 18,059,929.82 1,930,065 105.22 11,245
11 18,124,492.33 1,936,964 105.60 11,285
12 11,359,392.67 1,213,978 106.52 11,384
2020 11,319,273.74 1,209,691 107.36 11,474
10,564,951.90 1,129,076 106.03 11,331
9,080,416.52 970,424 93.67 10,011
9,365,792.91 1,000,922 96.62 10,326
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2020
2013 11 27 2014 12 2.95 315
2015 2015 12 3.65 390
2016 2016 12 3.53 377
2017 2017 12 3.13 335
2018 2018 12 3.27 349
2019 2019 12 3.79 405
2019 0.32 34

0.32 34

0.32 34

0.32 34

0.32 34

10 0.32 34

11 0.32 34

12 0.32 34

0.31 33

0.31 33

0.31 33

2019 2020 3.81 407
2013 11 27 2020 21.57 2,305
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2013 11 27 2014 12 0.76
2015 2015 12 7.70
2016 2016 12 8.33
2017 2017 12 2.20
2018 2018 12 1.35
2019 2019 12 5.80

100x

100

2015 2015 12 7.67
2016 2016 12 8.47
2017 2017 12 2.01
2018 2018 12 1.52
2019 2019 12 5.87

100x

100
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1,530,946 293,570 1,237,376
(1,530,946) (293,570) (1,237,376)
197,729 461,548 973,557
(197,729) (461,548) (973,557)
130,680 193,711 910,526
(130, 680) (193,711) (910,526)
72,514 96,427 886,613
(72,514) (96,427) (886, 613)
2,100 210,248 678,465
(2,100) (210, 248) (678, 465)

0 394,849 283,616

) (394,849) (283,616)
277,373 0 277,373
(277,373) ) (277,373)
77,325 43,230 311,468
(77,325) (43,230) (311,468)
210,724 11,205 510,987
(210,724) (11,205) (510,987)
36,140 244,461 302,666
(36,140) (244,461) (302, 666)
0 196,029 106,637

©) (196,029) (106,637)
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2020 (

2018
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1,000 2.20

1,000 10,000 1.65
10,000 30,000 1.10
30,000 0.55
2020 30
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2023 12 31

12 31

82/241



(a

(b

(c

150

83/241

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOo0oDOo0ooo00boo0gOoOoo(EesL86)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

90

90

10,000,000

10



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOo0oDOo0ooo00boo0gOoOoo(EesL86)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

90

90

84/241



10

21

15

85/241

10

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOo0oDOo0ooo00boo0gOoOoo(EesL86)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

50



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOo0oDOo0ooo00boo0gOoOoo(EesL86)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

86/241



22

38

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOo0oDOo0ooo00boo0gOoOoo(EesL86)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

59 131

23 103

2020 30
106.87

87/241



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOo0oDOo0ooo00boo0gOoOoo(EesL86)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 12 31
2019 12 31
2019
243,621 26,036
35,157,125 3,757,242
37,018,724
35,400,746 3,783,278
835 89
6,115 654
1,669 178
20,030 2,141
10 6,684 714
10 2,807 300
11 602 64
25,868 2,765
38,328 4,096
32,000 3,420
12 3,781 404
4,173 446
142,892 15,271
35,257,854 3,768,007
13 283,616
13 106,637
13 84.24 9,003
13 106.58 11,390
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2019 12 31

2019
4,123,752 440,705
108,610 11,607
329,622 35,227
15,293 1,634
21,512 2,299
6,499 695
58,131 6,212
54,755 5,852
594,422 63,526
3,529,330 377,179
3,248 347
396,283 42,351
82,559 8,823
146,808 15,689
33,023 3,529
10 42,260 4,516
16,483 1,762
35,000 3,740
15,587 1,666
40,494 4,328
18,180 1,943
3,600 385
9,575 1,023
50,000 5,344
889,852 95,098
2,642,726 282,428
(2,429,229) (259,612)
4,250,183 454,217
4,463,680 477,033
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2019 12 31

2019
2,642,726 282,428
(2,429,229) (259,612)
4,250,183 454,217
4,463,680 477,033
(54,223, 656) (5,794,882)
(1,834,206) (196,022)
(56,057,862) (5,990,904)
(51,594,182) (5,513,870)
86,852,036 9,281,877
35,257,854 3,768,007
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2019 12 31
2019
4,463,680 477,033
(3,529,330) (377,179)
)

56,730,000 6,062,735
2,429,229 259,612
(4,250,183) (454,217)
(53,989) (5,770)
55,789,407 5,962,214
(54,223,656) (5,794,882)
(1,834,206) (196,022)
(56,057,862) (5,990,904)
(268,455) (28,690)
512,076 54,726
243,621 26,036

@) 2,911,543
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2019 12 31
2013 10 14
2013 10 14
2013 11 27
1-1107
25
10 EQ
2019 25
10 EQ
Western Asset Bank Loan (Offshore) Fund
2019 12 31 100
100 2019 12 31
74.54

946
— 946
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50

12

50

2019 12 31
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0.01

S&P/LSTA Performing Loan Index
2019 12 31

387,834 37,018,724 35,157,125 99.71

387,834 37,018,724 35,157,125 99.71

2015-07 820
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12
2013 10 14 10 EQ
0.1
30 3,000
30 9%
60
0.025
60
2013 10 25
0.125
60
2013 10 15
0.60
0.05

60
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10
2013 11 25 2015 10 31
20,000
0.05 0.05
700
700 20
11
2013 11
150 15
12
2013 10 14 2013 10 14
0.01

15,000
60
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2013 11 26

2015

2018

2019
2019
2019

2018

2019
2019
2019

12

12
12
12

12

12
12
12

2019 12 31

31

31
31
31

2019 12 31

31

31
31
31
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100 2013 11

2013 11 26

100 2015 16
2015

678,465

(394,849)
283,616

23,892,743

84.24

302,666

(196,029)
106,637

11,365,111

106.58
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15

2019 12 31

2019 12 31
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16
83.14 100.58
[©) 3.97 3.19
) 1.06 2.81
(3.93)
84.24 106.58
©) 6.05 5.96
(d) 2.37 2.09
(e) 4.67 3.03
@)
(b)
©
(d)
)
17
2020 29
2020
4,461,034 367,148

1,139,503
2020
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US BANK LOAN OPEN (USD)
(A SERIES TRUST OF MIZUHO CAYMAN TRUST)

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2019

(Expressed in United States Dol lar)

2019
usb
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 243,621
Investment in Western Asset Bank Loan (Offshore) Fund
(the* Master Fund” )
(cost: USD 37,018,724) (Notes 3 and 4) 35,157,125

Total assets 35,400,746
LIABILITIES
Investment advisory fees payable (Note 7) 835
Management fees payable (Note 6) 6,115
Agent company fees payable (Note 9) 1,669
Distribution fees payable (Note 9) 20,030
Administration and Sub-Administrator fees payable (Note 10) 6,684
Transfer agent fees payable (Note 10) 2,807
Custody fees payable (Note 11) 602
Legal fees payable 25,868
Printing fees payable 38,328
Audit fees payable 32,000
Trustee fees payable (Note 12) 3,781
Investment management fees payable (Note 8) 4,173

Total liabilities 142,892
NET ASSETS 35,257,854
Units outstanding
Distribution Class (Note 13) 283,616
Non-distribution Class (Note 13) 106,637
Net asset value per unit
Distribution Class (Note 13) 84.24
Non-distribution Class (Note 13) 106.58

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(A SERIES TRUST OF MIZUHO CAYMAN TRUST)

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

(Expressed in United States Dol lar)

Investment income allocated from Master Fund
Interest (net of foreign tax: nil)

Expenses allocated from Master Fund

Loan servicing fees

Management fees

Administrative, accounting and agent fees
Other fees

Trustee fees

Custody fees

Professional fees

Net investment income allocated from Master Fund

Fund Income
Interest Income

Fund expenses

Distribution fees (Note 9)
Investment management fees (Note 8)
Management fees (Note 6)

Agent company fees (Note 9)
Administration and Sub-Administrator fees (Note 10)
Investment advisory fees (Note 7)
Legal fees

Trustee fees (Note 12)

Audit fees

Transfer agent fees (Note 10)
Custody fees (Note 11)

Annual regulator fees

Printing fee

Total Fund expenses

Net investment income

2019
usD

4,123,752

108,610
329,622
15,293
21,512
6,499
58,131
54,755
594,422

3,529,330

3,248

396,283
82,559
146,808
33,023
42,260
16,483
35,000
15,587
40,494
18,180
3,600
9,575
50,000

889,852

2,642,726

Net realised loss on investment activities allocated from Master Fund

Net realised loss on investments, derivative securities and foreign

currencies

(2,429,229)

Net unrealised gain on investment activities allocated from Master Fund

Net unrealised gain on investments, derivative securities and foreign

currencies

4,250,183

Net increase in net assets resulting from operations 4,463,680

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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US BANK LOAN OPEN (USD)
(A SERIES TRUST OF MIZUHO CAYMAN TRUST)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

(Expressed in United States Dol lar)

2019

usD
Increase in net assets from operations:
Net investment income 2,642,726
Net realised loss on investment activities allocated from Master Fund (2,429,229)
Net unrealised gain on investment activities allocated from Master Fund 4,250,183
Net increase in net assets resulting from operations 4,463,680
Decrease in net assets from capital transactions:
Capital redemptions (54,223,656)
Income distribution (1,834,206)
Net decrease in net assets from capital transactions (56,057,862)
Net decrease in net assets for the year (51,594,182)
Net assets - beginning of year 86,852,036
Net assets - end of year 35,257,854

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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US BANK LOAN OPEN (USD)
(A SERIES TRUST OF MIZUHO CAYMAN TRUST)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

(Expressed in United States Dol lar)

Cash flows from operating activities
Net increase in net assets resulting from operations

Adjustments to reconcile net increase in net assets from operations

to net cash provided by operating activities:

Net investment income allocated from Master Fund

Subscriptions to Master Fund ()

Redemptions from Master Fund

Net realised loss on investment activities allocated from Master Fund
Net unrealised gain on investment activities al located from Master Fund
Decrease in accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Payments for redemption of units
Income distribution paid

Net cash used in financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents - end of the year

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019
usD

4,463,680

(3,529, 330)
56,730,000
2,429,229
(4,250,183)

(53,989)

55,789,407

(54,223, 656)
(1,834,206)

(56,057,862)

(268, 455)

512,076

243,621

) This does not include the dividend reinvestment amount of USD 2,911,543 declared by the Master

Fund.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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US BANK LOAN OPEN (USD)
(A SERIES TRUST OF MIZUHO CAYMAN TRUST)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2019

1. Organization

US Bank Loan Open (USD) (the “ Fund” ) was established as a series trust of Mizuho Cayman Trust
(the “ Trust” ), an open-ended Umbrella Unit Trust by a Trust Deed dated October 14, 2013. The
Fund was established pursuant to a Supplemental Trust Deed dated October 14, 2013 and commenced
operations on November 27, 2013. The Trust is registered as an Exempted Trust under the Cayman
Islands Trusts Law. The Trust’ s place of business is 25 Main Street, George Town, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1107, Cayman Islands.

Pursuant to the Trust Deed, CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited and 1Q EQ Management
Bermuda Limited, act as Trustee and Manager to the Trust respectively. The Manager was formerly
known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited and changed its name to 1Q EQ Management Bermuda
Limited on 25 March 2019.

The investment objective of the Fund is to preserve capital and generate income for Unitholders
through a diversified portfolio of Bank Loan Instruments. The Fund will seek to achieve its
investment objective through investing in a USD denominated class of units of Western Asset Bank
Loan (Offshore) Fund (the “ Master Fund” ). Accordingly, the Fund will act as a feeder fund into
the Master Fund such that substantially all of the proceeds from the sale of the Units will be
invested in the Master Fund. The financial statements of the Master Fund are attached and should
be read in conjunction with the Fund’ s financial statements.

At December 31, 2019, the Fund had one unitholder who held 100% of the Fund’ s units outstanding.
The Fund held 100% in the USD class of the Master Fund, which constitutes 74.54% of the total Net

Asset Value of the Master Fund at December 31, 2019.

The financial statements of the Master Fund, including the condensed schedule of investments, are
included elsewhere in this report and should be read with the Fund’ s financial statements.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of Presentation: The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance

with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (* US GAAP” ). The
Fund is considered an investment company under US GAAP and follows the accounting and reporting
guidance applicable to investment companies in the Financial Accounting Standards Board

(“ FASB” ) Accounting Standards Codification (* ASC” ) 946, Financial Services - Investment
Companies (“ ASC 946" ).
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US BANK LOAN OPEN (USD)
(A SERIES TRUST OF MIZUHO CAYMAN TRUST)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

DECEMBER 31, 2019

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies are as follows:

Use of estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Investment in Master Fund: The Fund records its investment in the Master Fund at its

proportionate share of the Master Fund’ s net assets. Valuation of investments held by the Master
Fund, including, but not limited to, the valuation techniques used and classification within the
fair value hierarchy of investments held by the Master Fund are discussed in the Master Fund' s

notes to financial statements (the “ Master Fund’ s Notes” ), which are attached to these

financial statements.

Income and expense recognition: Investment transactions are recorded on a trade date basis. The

Fund records its proportionate share of the Master Fund’ s investment income, expenses and
realised and unrealised gains and losses. In addition, the Fund incurs its own expenses which it
accounts for on an accruals basis. The Master Fund’ s income and expense recognition and net
profit and loss allocation policies are discussed in the Master Fund’ s Notes.

Cash and cash equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents include short-term interest bearing accounts

with a maturity date of less than three months.

Foreign currency translation: The Fund transacts business in foreign currencies. Assets and

liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange at the
reporting date. Income and expenses are translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the date
on which the income or expense is incurred.

Taxation: Under the current laws of the government of the Cayman Islands, there is no income,
estate, transfer, sales or other Cayman Islands taxes payable by the Fund. The Fund intends
generally to conduct its affairs such that it will not be subject to income tax in any
jurisdiction.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

DECEMBER 31, 2019

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 740, the Fund is required to determine whether a tax position
is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by the applicable taxing authority,
including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical
merits of the position. The tax benefit to be recognised is measured as the largest amount of
benefit that is greater than fifty percent likely of being realised upon ultimate settlement. De-
recognition of a tax benefit previously recognised could result in the Fund recording a tax
liability that would reduce net assets. Income tax and related interest and penalties would be
recognised by the Fund as tax expense in the statement of operations if the tax positions were
deemed to not meet the more-likely-than-not threshold.

The Manager has analysed the Fund’ s tax positions and had concluded that no liability for
unrecognised tax benefits should be recorded related to uncertain tax positions. Further, the
Manager is not aware of any tax positions for which it is reasonably possible that the total
amounts of unrecognised tax benefits will significantly change in the next twelve months.

The Trust has received an undertaking from the Governor in Cabinet of Cayman Islands exempting it
from all local income, profits and capital taxes for a period of fifty years from the date of the

creation of the Trust.

The Fund has no examinations by tax authorities in progress. No interest expense or penalties
have been assessed for the year ended December 31, 2019.

Other Expenses: Other expenses are recorded on an accruals basis.

Unit subscriptions and redemptions: Unit subscriptions are recorded on the first day of the month

in which they are accepted and continue to participate in allocation of gains and losses until
the effective date of the unit redemption. Unit redemptions are recognized as liabilities, as of
their effective date.

106/241



EDINETOOOO
00000000000000000000000(E31086)
0o00000000o0ooooood
US BANK LOAN OPEN (USD)
(A SERIES TRUST OF MIZUHO CAYMAN TRUST)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

DECEMBER 31, 2019

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Distribution Policy:

Monthly Distribution Class Units

The Manager may direct the Trustee to declare distributions in respect of the Monthly
Distribution Class Units on each Distribution Date in respect of the corresponding Distribution
Period (the "Current Distribution Period") of such amount as determined by the Manager, after
consultation with the Investment Manager. Such distributions will be paid out of the income,
realised and unrealised capital gains and/or any distributable funds attributable to the Monthly
Distribution Class Units, including out of the capital attributable to the Monthly Distribution
Class Units if considered necessary in order to maintain a reasonable level of distributions.

Any distributions in respect of the Current Distribution Period will be made to the person in
whose name the Monthly Distribution Class Units are registered on the Register on the Business
Day immediately preceding the relevant Distribution Date and all such distributions will be
rounded naturally to the nearest USD 0.01.

Investors should note that the payment of distributions in respect of the Monthly Distribution
Class Units is entirely at the discretion of the Manager and no representation or guarantee is

made that a distribution will be declared in respect of each Distribution Date.

Non-Distribution Class Units

Income and realised capital gains attributable to the Non-Distribution Class Units will not be
distributed unless the Manager determines otherwise. Such income and realised capital gains will
be reflected in the Net Asset Value per Unit of the Non-Distribution Class Units.

3. Investment in Master Fund

The Fund seeks to preserve capital and generate income by substantially investing in mainly Bank
Loans, including USD denominated loans issued by corporations, through its investment in a USD
class of units of the Master Fund.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

DECEMBER 31, 2019

3. Investment in Master Fund (continued)

The Master Fund is a Cayman Islands umbrella unit trust that invests principally in a diversified
portfolio consisting substantially of Bank Loan Instruments (as defined below) that is designed
to control and restrict overall portfolio risk. “ Bank Loan Instruments” include USD-denominated
loans, loan participations and loan assignments that are issued by US or non-US corporations

(* Bank Loans” ), and USD-denominated fixed income securities (other than Bank Loans) that are
issued by US or non-US corporations. The Master Fund®s benchmark index (the “ Reference
Benchmark” ) will be chosen by the Master Fund Manager and may be changed by the Master Fund
Manager from time to time. As of the reporting date, the Master Fund is using the S&P/LSTA
Performing Loan Index as the Reference Benchmark.

A breakdown of the Fund"s investment as at December 31, 2019 is as follows:

Units Cost (USD) Fair Value (USD) % of Net Assets
‘gﬁﬁgem Asset Bank Loan (Offshore) 557 05, 37 (15 724 35,157,125 99.71%
Total Investment 387,834 37,018,724 35,157,125 99.71%

The Fund receives income distribution from its investment in the Master Fund. This income
distribution is recorded net of any Investment Management fees or other fees incurred by the
Master Fund, and will be reinvested into the Master Fund.

4. Fair value measurements

The Fund adopted the guidance issued in ASU 2015-07 Topic 820, Disclosures for Investments in
Certain Entities That Calculate Net Asset Value per Share (or Its Equivalent), which removes the
requirement to categorize within the fair value hierarchy all investments measured using the net
asset value per share as a practical expedient and related disclosures. The adoption of this
accounting guidance did not have a material impact on the Fund’ s financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

DECEMBER 31, 2019

5. Related-party transactions

The related parties, 1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited, Western Asset Management Company Limited,
Legg Mason Asset Management (Japan) Co., Ltd and CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
received fees during the year. Details of the fees are disclosed in Notes 6, 7, 8 and 12
respectively.

6. Management fee

Pursuant to the Master Trust Deed dated October 14, 2013, 1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited serves
as the Manager of the Fund (the "Manager'). The Manager is entitled to receive out of the assets
of the Fund a management fee of 0.1% per annum of the Net Asset Value accrued on and calculated
as at each Valuation Day and payable monthly in arrear, subject to a minimum monthly fee for each
class of Units, in respect of and payable out of the assets attributable to such class of Units.
Where the average Net Asset Value of a class of Units for the relevant month is equal to or less
than USD 30 million, the minimum monthly fee shall be USD 3,000, however, should the average Net
Asset Value of a class of Units for the relevant month is greater than USD 30 million but less
than USD 96 million, the minimum monthly fee shall be USD 8,000. Should only one class of Units
remain in issue within the Fund, the Manager shall be entitled to receive a minimum monthly fee
of USD 10,000.

The Manager is also entitled to be reimbursed out of the assets of the Fund for any expenses
incurred by it in the proper performance of its powers and duties as permitted under the Master

Trust Deed.

The fee payable for each month will be paid within 60 calendar days from the last Business Day in
that month.

7. Investment Advisory fee

The Manager, in exercising the management of the Fund, engages Western Asset Management Company
Limited (* Western” ) for continuous investment advisory services. Western is entitled to receive
out of the assets of the Fund a fee based on the Net Asset Value at the rate of 0.025% per annum
of the Net Asset Value accrued on and calculated as at each Valuation Day.

109/241



EDINETOOOO
00000000000000000000000(E31086)
0o00000000o0ooooood
US BANK LOAN OPEN (USD)
(A SERIES TRUST OF MIZUHO CAYMAN TRUST)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

DECEMBER 31, 2019

7. Investment Advisory fee (continued)

The fee payable for each month will be paid within 60 calendar days from the last Business Day in
that month.

8. Investment Management fee

Pursuant to the appendix to the offering memorandum and the Investment Management Agreement dated
October 25, 2013, Legg Mason Asset Management (Japan) Co., Ltd. serves as the Investment Manager
of the Fund (the "Investment Manager'™). The Investment Manager is entitled to receive out of the
assets of the Fund a fee at the rate of 0.125% per annum of the Net Asset Value, accrued on and
calculated as at each Valuation Day and payable monthly in arrears.

The fee payable for each month will be paid within 60 calendar days from the last Business Day in
that month.

All proper out of pocket expenses and disbursements incurred on behalf of the Fund will also be
reimbursed to the Investment Manager out of the assets of the Fund.

9. Distribution and Agent Company fee

Pursuant to the appendix to the offering memorandum and Agent Company Agreement dated October 15,
2013, Mizuho Securities Co. Ltd. serves as the Distributor (the "Distributor™) and Agent Company
of the Fund (the "Agent Company'). The Distributor is entitled to receive out of the assets of
the Fund a fee at the rate of 0.60% per annum of the Net Asset Value, accrued on and calculated
as at each Valuation Day and payable monthly in arrears. The Agent Company is entitled to receive
out of the assets of the Fund a fee of 0.05% per annum of the Net Asset Value, calculated and
accrued daily and payable monthly in arrears.

The fee payable for each month will be paid within 60 calendar days from the last Business Day in
that month.
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DECEMBER 31, 2019

10. Administration, Sub-Administrator and Transfer Agent fee

Pursuant to the appendix to the offering memorandum, the Fund Administration Agreement dated
November 25, 2013 and the Sub-Administrator Agreement dated October 31, 2015, BNY Mellon Fund
Management (Cayman) Limited serves as the Administrator of the Fund. The Bank of New York Mellon,
Singapore Branch, serves as the Sub-Administrator and Transfer Agent to the Fund (the "Sub-
Administrator').

The Administrator is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Fund a minimum fee of USD
20,000 per annum or a fee at the rate of 0.05% per annum of the Net Asset Value accrued on and
calculated as at each Valuation Day if such amount exceeds the minimum fee, which is payable
monthly in arrears.

The Administrator is entitled to a transfer agent fee of USD 700 per month per Unitholder, plus a
further USD 700 per Subsequent Class of Units per month. A transaction fee of USD 20 per

transaction is also payable. Such fees will be paid out of the assets of the Fund.

The Administrator and Sub-Administrator fees may be subject to change from time to time in
accordance with the terms of the Fund Administration Agreement.

11. Custody fee

Pursuant to the appendix to the offering memorandum and the Global Custody Agreement dated
November 7, 2013, the Bank of New York Mellon serves as the Custodian to the Fund (the
"Custodian™). The primary duties of the Custodian are to hold the assets of the Fund in
safekeeping, to settle transactions entered into in respect of the Fund and to collect all income
due on the Fund’ s investments.

The Custodian is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Fund fixed fees of USD 150 per
month for each class of Units payable monthly in arrear plus transaction fees of USD 15 per

transaction and expenses.

The Custodian®s fees may be subject to change from time to time in accordance with the terms of
the Global Custody Agreement.
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DECEMBER 31, 2019

12. Trustee fee

Pursuant to the Master Trust Deed dated October 14, 2013 and the Supplemental Trust Deed dated
October 14, 2013, CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited serves as the Trustee of the Fund
(the "Trustee™). The Trustee is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Fund a fee at the
rate of 0.01% per annum of the Net Asset Value accrued on and calculated as at each Valuation Day
and payable quarterly in arrear, subject to a minimum annual fee of USD 15,000.

The fee payable for each quarter will be paid within 60 calendar days from the last Business Day
in that quarter.

All proper out-of-pocket expenses and disbursements incurred on behalf of the Fund will also be
reimbursed to the Trustee out of the assets of the Fund.

13. Capital

Distribution Class Units were offered to eligible investors during the period from November 1,
2013 to November 26, 2013, at the purchase price of USD 100 per unit. After November 26, 2013,
units will be available for subscription on a daily basis at the purchase price described below,
provided the request is submitted to the Fund by no later than 4:00pm (Tokyo Time) on each
dealing day.

Non-distribution Class Units were offered to eligible investors during the period from July 16,
2015 to August 4, 2015, at the purchase price of USD 100 per unit. After August 4, 2015, units
will be available for subscription on a daily basis at the purchase price described below,
provided the request is submitted to the Fund by no later than 4:00pm (Tokyo Time) on each
dealing day.

The purchase price per unit shall be calculated by dividing the net asset value on the valuation
day falling two business days prior to the relevant dealing day by the number of units in issue

on such valuation day, rounded naturally to two decimal places.

The minimum subscription for each subscriber during the initial offer period is 1 unit. Units are
available for subscription at the applicable subscription price on each dealing day.
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DECEMBER 31, 2019

13. Capital (continued)

Units may be redeemed by the unit holder on a daily basis provided the request is submitted to
the Fund by no later than 4:00pm (Tokyo Time) on a redemption day (the“ Repurchase Day” ).

The redemption price per unit shall be calculated by dividing the net asset value as at the
valuation day falling two business days prior to the relevant redemption day by the number of
units in issue on such valuation day, rounded naturally to two decimal places.

The minimum redemption amount per redemption is 1 Unit.

Transactions in the Distribution Class units for the year ended December 31, 2019 and net asset
value per unit is as follows:

Distribution Class

Number of units at December 31, 2018 678,465
Subscriptions -
Redemptions (394,849)

Number of units at December 31, 2019 283,616

Net asset value at December 31, 2019 usb 23,892,743

Net asset value per unit at December 31, 2019 usb 84.24

Transactions in the Non-distribution Class units for the year ended December 31, 2019 and net asset value
per unit is as follows:
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13. Capital (continued)

Non-distribution Class

Number of units at December 31, 2018 302,666
Subscriptions -
Redemptions (196,029)

Number of units at December 31, 2019 106,637

Net asset value at December 31, 2019 UsD 11,365,111

Net asset value per unit at December 31, 2019 usb 106.58

14. Financial instruments and associated risks

The following summary of certain risk factors is not intended to be a comprehensive summary of
all risks inherent in the Fund.

At December 31, 2019, the Fund’ s sole investment was in the Master Fund and, as such, the Fund
is directly and materially affected by the performance and actions of the Master Fund.

“

Due to the nature of the “ master fund/feeder fund” structure, the Fund may be materially

affected by the actions of other feeder funds investing in the Master Fund.

Off-balance sheet, market and credit risks of the Master Fund’ s investments and activities are
discussed in the Master Fund’ s notes. The Fund’ s investment in the Master Fund exposes it to
various types of risk, which are associated with the financial instruments and markets in which
the Master Fund invests. Market risk represents the potential loss in value of financial
instruments caused by movements in market factors including, but not limited to, market
liquidity, investor sentiment and foreign exchange rates.

The Master Fund’ s portfolio consists of investments and derivatives that may trade in limited
markets or have restrictions on resale or transfer and may not be able to be liquidated on demand
if needed. Value assigned to these investments may differ significantly from the values that
would have been used had a ready market for the investments existed and such differences could be
material to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

DECEMBER 31, 2019

14. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

At December 31, 2019, all cash and cash equivalents were held with Bank of New York Mellon.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is measured by the loss the Fund would record if Bank of

New York Mellon failed to perform pursuant to the terms of its obligations.

15. Commitments and contingencies

In the normal course of business, the Fund enters into contracts that contain a variety of

representations and warranties and which provide general indemnifications. The Fund’ s maximum

exposure under these arrangements is unknown, as this would involve future claims that may be

made against the Fund that have not yet occurred.

expects the risk of loss to be remote.

16. Financial Highlights

Per unit operating performance
(For aunit outstanding during the year)

Net asset value, beginning of year

Gain from operations:
Net investment income (a)

Net realised and unrealised loss from
investments, derivatives securities and
foreign currencies (b)

Distribution
Net asset value, end of the year

Total return (c)

Percentages and supplemental data:
Ratios to average net assets:

Expense ratio (d)

Net investment income ratio (e)

Distribution
Class

usD 83.14 USD

3.97

1.06

(3.93)

usD 84.24 USD

6.05%

2.37%

4.67%
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16. Financial Highlights (continued)

(a) Calculated by dividing net investment income by the average number of units outstanding
during the year.

(b) The amount in this caption may not agree to the change in aggregate gains and losses for the
year, as these figures are balancing amounts necessary to reconcile the change in net asset
value per unit information presented.

(c) Total return is not necessarily indicative of the Fund’ s performance as a whole. Individual
investor returns may differ depending on the timing of any subscription or redemption

transactions.

(d) The expense ratio is calculated based on the Fund’ s total expenses, including total expenses
allocated from Master Fund for the year as a percentage of average net assets.

(e) The net investment income ratio is calculated based on the Fund’ s net investment income as a
percentage of average net assets.

17. Subsequent Events

The Fund has evaluated subsequent events through May 29, 2020, the date the financial statements
were available to be issued. For the period January 1, 2020 through the date of this report,
there were no subscriptions, redemptions of USD 4,461,034 and distributions of USD 367,148 for
the Distribution Class. For the same period, there were no subscriptions, redemptions of USD
1,139,503 for the Non-distribution Class.

Since the start of January 2020, the outbreak of coronavirus, which is a rapidly evolving
situation, has adversely impacted global commercial activities. The rapid development and
fluidity of this situation precludes any prediction as its ultimate impact, which may have a
continued adverse impact on economic and market conditions and trigger a period of global
economic slowdown. Management and the Trustee consider this to be a non-adjusting post balance
sheet event. The value of the investment in the Master Fund has not been adjusted due to the
coronavirus situation.

Management and the Trustee are monitoring developments relating to coronavirus and are
coordinating their operational response based on existing business continuity plans and on
guidance from the World Health Organisation, relevant governments, and general pandemic response
practices.
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2018 12 31
2018 12 31
2018
512,076 54,726
86,536,841 9,248,192
93,799,908
87,048,917 9,302,918
1,874 200
16,307 1,743
3,749 401
44,984 4,807
10 8,214 878
10 2,807 300
11 601 64
31,517 3,368
42,195 4,509
31,480 3,364
12 3,781 404
9,372 1,002
196,881 21,041
86,852,036 9,281,877
13 678,465
13 302,666
13 83.14 8,885
13 100.58 10,749
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2018 12 31
2018
6,159,007 658,213
159,872 17,086
569,475 60,860
41,722 4,459
76,847 8,213
11,389 1,217
64,901 6,936
44,113 4,714
968,319 103,484
5,190,688 554,729
3,015 322
685,225 73,230
142,755 15,256
192,000 20,519
57,102 6,102
10 57,850 6,182
28,551 3,051
35,000 3,740
12 15,550 1,662
39,118 4,181
10 18,940 2,024
11 3,600 385
7,327 783
119 13
70,000 7,481
1,353,137 144,610
3,840,566 410,441
(1,069,078) (114,252)
(3,320,785) (354,892)
(549,297) (58,703)
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2018 12 31

2018
3,840,566 410,441
(1,069,078) (114,252)
(3,320,785) (354,892)

(549,297) (58,703)
3,899,060 416,693
(43,899,321) (4,691,520)
(2,470,992) (264,075)
(42,471,253) (4,538,903)
(43,020,550) (4,597,606)
129,872,586 13,879,483
86,852,036 9,281,877
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2018 12 31
2018
(549,297) (58,703)
(5,190,688) (554,729)
O (3,200,000) (341,984)
47,000,000 5,022,890
1,069,078 114,252
3,320,785 354,892
(15,712) (1,679)
42,434,166 4,534,939
3,899,060 416,693
(43,899,321) (4,691,520)
(2,470,992) (264,075)
(42,471,253) (4,538,903)
(37,087) (3,963)
549,163 58,689
512,076 54,726
@) 4,380,214
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2013 10 14
2013 11 27
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11
10 EQ
17
Western Asset Bank Loan (Offshore) Fund
2018 12 31 100

100 2018 12 31

79.73

946
— 946
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0.01

S&P/LSTA Performing Loan Index
2018 12 31

980,476 93,799,908 86,536,841 99.64

980,476 93,799,908 86,536,841 99.64

124/241



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOo0oDOo0ooo00boo0gOoOoo(EesL86)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2015-07 820
1Q EQ
12
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2,100
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678,465

56,409,984

83.14

510,987
36,140
(244, 461)
302,666

30,442,052
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US BANK LOAN OPEN (USD)
(A SERIES TRUST OF MIZUHO CAYMAN TRUST)

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018

(Expressed in United States Dol lar)

2018
usb
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 512,076
Investment in Western Asset Bank Loan (Offshore) Fund
(the* Master Fund” )
(cost: USD 93,799,908) (Notes 3 and 4) 86,536,841

Total assets 87,048,917
LIABILITIES
Investment advisory fees payable (Note 7) 1,874
Management fees payable (Note 6) 16,307
Agent company fees payable (Note 9) 3,749
Distribution fees payable (Note 9) 44,984
Administration and Sub-Administrator fees payable (Note 10) 8,214
Transfer agent fees payable (Note 10) 2,807
Custody fees payable (Note 11) 601
Legal fees payable 31,517
Printing fees payable 42,195
Audit fees payable 31,480
Trustee fees payable (Note 12) 3,781
Investment management fees payable (Note 8) 9,372

Total liabilities 196,881
NET ASSETS 86,852,036
Units outstanding
Distribution Class (Note 13) 678,465
Non-distribution Class (Note 13) 302,666
Net asset value per unit
Distribution Class (Note 13) 83.14
Non-distribution Class (Note 13) 100.58

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(A SERIES TRUST OF MIZUHO CAYMAN TRUST)

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

(Expressed in United States Dol lar)

Investment income allocated from Master Fund
Interest (net of foreign tax: nil)

Expenses allocated from Master Fund

Loan servicing fees

Management fees

Administrative, accounting and agent fees
Other fees

Trustee fees

Custody fees

Professional fees

Net investment income allocated from Master Fund

Fund Income
Interest Income

Fund expenses

Distribution fees (Note 9)
Investment management fees (Note 8)
Management fees (Note 6)

Agent company fees (Note 9)
Administration and Sub-Administrator fees (Note 10)
Investment advisory fees (Note 7)
Legal fees

Trustee fees (Note 12)

Audit fees

Transfer agent fees (Note 10)
Custody fees (Note 11)

Annual regulator fees

Miscellaneous fees

Printing fee

Total Fund expenses

Net investment income

2018
usD

6,159,007

159,872
569,475
41,722
76,847
11,389
64,901
44,113
968,319

5,190,688

3,015

685,225
142,755
192,000
57,102
57,850
28,551
35,000
15,550
39,118
18,940
3,600
7,327
119
70,000

1,353,137

3,840,566

Net realised loss on investment activities allocated from Master Fund

Net realised loss on investments, derivative securities and foreign

currencies

(1,069,078)

Net unrealised loss on investment activities allocated from Master Fund

Net change in unrealised loss on investments, derivative securities and

foreign currencies

(3,320,785)

Net decrease in net assets resulting from operations (549,297)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

(Expressed in United States Dol lar)

Decrease in net assets from operations:

Net investment income

Net realised loss on investment activities allocated from Master Fund

Net change in unrealised loss on investment activities allocated from Master

Fund

Net decrease in net assets resulting from operations

Decrease in net assets from capital transactions:
Capital subscriptions

Capital redemptions

Income distribution

Net decrease in net assets from capital transactions
Net decrease in net assets for the year
Net assets - beginning of year

Net assets - end of year

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2018
usD

3,840,566
(1,069,078)

(3,320,785)

(549,297)

3,899,060
(43,899,321)
(2,470,992)

(42,471,253)

(43,020,550)

129,872,586

86,852,036

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

(Expressed in United States Dol lar)

2018
usb

Cash flows from operating activities
Net decrease in net assets resulting from operations (549,297)
Adjustments to reconcile net decrease in net assets from operations
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Net investment income al located from Master Fund (5,190,688)
Subscriptions to Master Fund (O (3,200,000)
Redemptions from Master Fund 47,000,000
Net realised loss on investment activities allocated from Master Fund 1,069,078
Net change in unrealised loss on investment activities allocated from Master 5
Fund 3,320,785
Decrease in accounts payable and accrued liabilities (15,712)

Net cash provided by operating activities 42,434,166
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of units 3,899,060
Payments for redemption of units (43,899,321)
Income distribution paid (2,470,992)

Net cash used in financing activities (42,471,253)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (37,087)
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of the year 549,163
Cash and cash equivalents - end of the year 512,076

@) This does not include the dividend reinvestment amount of USD 4,380,214 declared by the Master
Fund.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2018

1. Organization

US Bank Loan Open (USD) (the “ Fund” ) was established as a series trust of Mizuho Cayman Trust
(the “ Trust” ), an open-ended Umbrella Unit Trust by a Trust Deed dated October 14, 2013. The
Fund was established pursuant to a Supplemental Trust Deed dated October 14, 2013 and commenced
operations on November 27, 2013. The Trust is registered as an Exempted Trust under the Cayman
Islands Trusts Law. The Trust’ s place of business is 11 Dr Roy’ s Drive, George Town, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1107, Cayman Islands.

Pursuant to the Trust Deed, CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited and 1Q EQ Management
Bermuda Limited, act as Trustee and Manager to the Trust respectively. The change of name of the
Manager after the reporting date is disclosed in detail in note 17 to these financial statements.

The investment objective of the Fund is to preserve capital and generate income for Unitholders
through a diversiftied portfolio of Bank Loan Instruments. The Fund will seek to achieve its
investment objective through investing in a USD denominated class of units of Western Asset Bank
Loan (Offshore) Fund (the “ Master Fund” ). Accordingly, the Fund will act as a feeder fund into
the Master Fund such that substantially all of the proceeds from the sale of the Units will be
invested in the Master Fund. The financial statements of the Master Fund are attached and should
be read in conjunction with the Fund’ s financial statements.

At December 31, 2018, the Fund had one unitholder who held 100% of the Fund’ s units outstanding.
The Fund held 100% in the USD class of the Master Fund, which constitutes 79.73% of the total Net

Asset Value of the Master Fund at December 31, 2018.

The financial statements of the Master Fund, including the condensed schedule of investments, are
included elsewhere in this report and should be read with the Fund’ s financial statements.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of Presentation: The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (* US GAAP” ). The
Fund is considered an investment company under US GAAP and follows the accounting and reporting

guidance applicable to investment companies in the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“ FASB” ) Accounting Standards Codification (* ASC” ) 946, Financial Services - Investment
Companies (“ ASC 946" ).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2018

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies are as follows:

Use of estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Investment in Master Fund: The Fund records its investment in the Master Fund at its

proportionate share of the Master Fund’ s net assets. Valuation of investments held by the Master
Fund, including, but not limited to, the valuation techniques used and classification within the
fair value hierarchy of investments held by the Master Fund are discussed in the Master Fund' s

notes to financial statements (the “ Master Fund’ s Notes” ), which are attached to these

financial statements.

Income and expense recognition: Investment transactions are recorded on a trade date basis. The

Fund records its proportionate share of the Master Fund’ s investment income, expenses and
realised and unrealised gains and losses. In addition, the Fund incurs its own expenses which it
accounts for on an accruals basis. The Master Fund’ s income and expense recognition and net
profit and loss allocation policies are discussed in the Master Fund’ s Notes.

Cash and cash equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents include short-term interest bearing accounts

with a maturity date of less than three months.

Foreign currency translation: The Fund transacts business in foreign currencies. Assets and

liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange at the
reporting date. Income and expenses are translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the date
on which the income or expense is incurred.

Taxation: Under the current laws of the government of the Cayman Islands, there is no income,
estate, transfer, sales or other Cayman Islands taxes payable by the Fund. The Fund intends
generally to conduct its affairs such that it will not be subject to income tax in any
jurisdiction.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2018

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 740, the Fund is required to determine whether a tax position
is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by the applicable taxing authority,
including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical
merits of the position. The tax benefit to be recognized is measured as the largest amount of
benefit that is greater than fifty percent likely of being realised upon ultimate settlement. De-
recognition of a tax benefit previously recognized could result in the Fund recording a tax
liability that would reduce net assets. Income tax and related interest and penalties would be
recognized by the Fund as tax expense in the statement of operations if the tax positions were
deemed to not meet the more-likely-than-not threshold.

The Manager has analyzed the Fund’ s tax positions and had concluded that no liability for
unrecognized tax benefits should be recorded related to uncertain tax positions. Further, the
Manager is not aware of any tax positions for which it is reasonably possible that the total
amounts of unrecognized tax benefits will significantly change in the next twelve months.

The Trust has received an undertaking from the Governor in Cabinet of Cayman Islands exempting it
from all local income, profits and capital taxes for a period of fifty years from the date of the

creation of the Trust.

The Fund has no examinations by tax authorities in progress. No interest expense or penalties
have been assessed for the year ended December 31, 2018.

Other Expenses: Other expenses are recorded on an accruals basis.

Unit subscriptions and redemptions: Unit subscriptions are recorded on the first day of the month

in which they are accepted and continue to participate in allocation of gains and losses until
the effective date of the unit redemption. Unit redemptions are recognized as liabilities, as of
their effective date.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2018

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Distribution Policy:

Monthly Distribution Class Units

The Manager may direct the Trustee to declare distributions in respect of the Monthly
Distribution Class Units on each Distribution Date in respect of the corresponding Distribution
Period (the "Current Distribution Period") of such amount as determined by the Manager, after
consultation with the Investment Manager. Such distributions will be paid out of the income,
realised and unrealised capital gains and/or any distributable funds attributable to the Monthly
Distribution Class Units, including out of the capital attributable to the Monthly Distribution
Class Units if considered necessary in order to maintain a reasonable level of distributions.

Any distributions in respect of the Current Distribution Period will be made to the person in
whose name the Monthly Distribution Class Units are registered on the Register on the Business
Day immediately preceding the relevant Distribution Date and all such distributions will be
rounded naturally to the nearest USD 0.01.

Investors should note that the payment of distributions in respect of the Monthly Distribution
Class Units is entirely at the discretion of the Manager and no representation or guarantee is

made that a distribution will be declared in respect of each Distribution Date.

Non-Distribution Class Units

Income and realised capital gains attributable to the Non-Distribution Class Units will not be
distributed unless the Manager determines otherwise. Such income and realised capital gains will
be reflected in the Net Asset Value per Unit of the Non-Distribution Class Units.

3. Investment in Master Fund

The Fund seeks to preserve capital and generate income by substantially investing in mainly Bank
Loans, including USD denominated loans issued by corporations, through its investment in a USD
class of units of the Master Fund.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2018

3. Investment in Master Fund (continued)

The Master Fund is a Cayman Islands umbrella unit trust that invests principally in a diversified
portfolio consisting substantially of Bank Loan Instruments (as defined below) that is designed
to control and restrict overall portfolio risk. “ Bank Loan Instruments” include USD-denominated
loans, loan participations and loan assignments that are issued by US or non-US corporations

(* Bank Loans” ), and USD-denominated fixed income securities (other than Bank Loans) that are
issued by US or non-US corporations. The Master Fund®s benchmark index (the “ Reference
Benchmark” ) will be chosen by the Master Fund Manager and may be changed by the Master Fund
Manager from time to time. As of the reporting date, the Master Fund is using the S&P/LSTA
Performing Loan Index as the Reference Benchmark.

A breakdown of the Fund"s investment as at December 31, 2018 is as follows:

Units Cost (USD) Fair Value (USD) % of Net Assets
‘gﬁﬁgem Asset Bank Loan (Offshore) g4 476 93,799,908 86,536,841 99.64%
Total Investment 980,476 93,799,908 86,536,841 99.64%

The Fund receives income distribution from its investment in the Master Fund. This income
distribution is recorded net of any Investment Management fees or other fees incurred by the
Master Fund, and will be reinvested into the Master Fund.

4. Fair value measurements

The Fund adopted the guidance issued in ASU 2015-07 Topic 820, Disclosures for Investments in
Certain Entities That Calculate Net Asset Value per Share (or Its Equivalent), which removes the
requirement to categorize within the fair value hierarchy all investments measured using the net
asset value per share as a practical expedient and related disclosures. The adoption of this
accounting guidance did not have a material impact on the Fund’ s financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2018

5. Related-party transactions

The related parties, 1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited, Western Asset Management Company Limited,
Legg Mason Asset Management (Japan) Co., Ltd and CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
received fees during the year. Details of the fees are disclosed in Notes 6, 7, 8 and 12
respectively.

6. Management fee

Pursuant to the Master Trust Deed dated October 14, 2013, 1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited serves
as the Manager of the Fund (the "Manager'™). From and including July 1, 2015, the Manager is
entitled to receive out of the assets of the Fund a management fee of 0.1% per annum of the Net
Asset Value accrued on and calculated as at each Valuation Day and payable monthly in arrear,
subject to a minimum monthly fee for each class of Units, in respect of and payable out of the
assets attributable to such class of Units. Where the average Net Asset Value of a class of Units
for the relevant month is equal to or less than USD 30 million, the minimum monthly fee shall be
USD 3,000, however, should the average Net Asset Value of a class of Units for the relevant month
is greater than USD 30 million but less than USD 96 million, the minimum monthly fee shall be USD
8,000. Should only one class of Units remain in issue within the Fund, the Manager shall be
entitled to receive a minimum monthly fee of USD 10,000.

The Manager is also entitled to be reimbursed out of the assets of the Fund for any expenses
incurred by it in the proper performance of its powers and duties as permitted under the Master

Trust Deed.

The fee payable for each month will be paid within 60 calendar days from the last Business Day in
that month.

7. Investment Advisory fee

The Manager, in exercising the management of the Fund, engages Western Asset Management Company
Limited (* Western” ) for continuous investment advisory services. Western is entitled to receive
out of the assets of the Fund a fee based on the Net Asset Value at the rate of 0.025% per annum
of the Net Asset Value accrued on and calculated as at each Valuation Day.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2018

7. Investment Advisory fee (continued)

The fee payable for each month will be paid within 60 calendar days from the last Business Day in
that month.

8. Investment Management fee

Pursuant to the appendix to the offering memorandum and the Investment Management Agreement dated
October 25, 2013, Legg Mason Asset Management (Japan) Co., Ltd. serves as the Investment Manager
of the Fund (the "Investment Manager'™). The Investment Manager is entitled to receive out of the
assets of the Fund a fee at the rate of 0.125% per annum of the Net Asset Value, accrued on and
calculated as at each Valuation Day and payable monthly in arrears.

The fee payable for each month will be paid within 60 calendar days from the last Business Day in
that month.

All proper out of pocket expenses and disbursements incurred on behalf of the Fund will also be
reimbursed to the Investment Manager out of the assets of the Fund.

9. Distribution and Agent Company fee

Pursuant to the appendix to the offering memorandum and Agent Company Agreement dated October 15,
2013, Mizuho Securities Co. Ltd. serves as the Distributor (the "Distributor™) and Agent Company
of the Fund (the "Agent Company'). The Distributor is entitled to receive out of the assets of
the Fund a fee at the rate of 0.60% per annum of the Net Asset Value, accrued on and calculated
as at each Valuation Day and payable monthly in arrears. The Agent Company is entitled to receive
out of the assets of the Fund a fee of 0.05% per annum of the Net Asset Value, calculated and
accrued daily and payable monthly in arrears.

The fee payable for each month will be paid within 60 calendar days from the last Business Day in
that month.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2018

10. Administration, Sub-Administrator and Transfer Agent fee

Pursuant to the appendix to the offering memorandum, the Fund Administration Agreement dated
November 25, 2013 and the Sub-Administrator Agreement dated October 31, 2015, BNY Mellon Fund
Management (Cayman) Limited serves as the Administrator of the Fund. The Bank of New York Mellon,
Singapore Branch, serves as the Sub-Administrator and Transfer Agent to the Fund (the "Sub-
Administrator').

The Administrator is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Fund a minimum fee of USD
20,000 per annum or a fee at the rate of 0.05% per annum of the Net Asset Value accrued on and
calculated as at each Valuation Day if such amount exceeds the minimum fee, which iIs payable
monthly in arrears.

The Administrator is entitled to a transfer agent fee of USD 700 per month per Unitholder, plus a
further USD 700 per Subsequent Class of Units per month. A transaction fee of USD 20 per
transaction is also payable. Such fees will be paid out of the assets of the Fund.

The Administrator and Sub-Administrator fees may be subject to change from time to time in
accordance with the terms of the Fund Administration Agreement.

11. Custody fee

Pursuant to the appendix to the offering memorandum and the Global Custody Agreement dated
November 7, 2013, the Bank of New York Mellon serves as the Custodian to the Fund (the
"Custodian™). The primary duties of the Custodian are to hold the assets of the Fund in
safekeeping, to settle transactions entered into in respect of the Fund and to collect all income
due on the Fund’ s investments.

The Custodian is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Fund fixed fees of USD 150 per
month for each class of Units payable monthly in arrear plus transaction fees of USD 15 per

transaction and expenses.

The Custodian®s fees may be subject to change from time to time in accordance with the terms of
the Global Custody Agreement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2018

12. Trustee fee

Pursuant to the Master Trust Deed dated October 14, 2013 and the Supplemental Trust Deed dated
October 14, 2013, CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited serves as the Trustee of the Fund
(the "Trustee™). The Trustee is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Fund a fee at the
rate of 0.01% per annum of the Net Asset Value accrued on and calculated as at each Valuation Day
and payable quarterly in arrear, subject to a minimum annual fee of USD 15,000.

The fee payable for each quarter will be paid within 60 calendar days from the last Business Day
in that quarter.

All proper out-of-pocket expenses and disbursements incurred on behalf of the Fund will also be
reimbursed to the Trustee out of the assets of the Fund.

13. Capital

Distribution Class Units were offered to eligible investors during the period from November 1,
2013 to November 26, 2013, at the purchase price of USD 100 per unit. After November 26, 2013,
units will be available for subscription on a daily basis at the purchase price described below,
provided the request is submitted to the Fund by no later than 4:00pm (Tokyo Time) on each
dealing day.

Non-distribution Class Units were offered to eligible investors during the period from July 16,
2015 to August 4, 2015, at the purchase price of USD 100 per unit. After August 4, 2015, units
will be available for subscription on a daily basis at the purchase price described below,
provided the request is submitted to the Fund by no later than 4:00pm (Tokyo Time) on each
dealing day.

The purchase price per unit shall be calculated by dividing the net asset value on the valuation
day falling two business days prior to the relevant dealing day by the number of units in issue

on such valuation day, rounded naturally to two decimal places.

The minimum subscription for each subscriber during the initial offer period is 1 unit. Units are
available for subscription at the applicable subscription price on each dealing day.
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13. Capital (continued)

Units may be redeemed by the unit holder on a daily basis provided the request is submitted to
the Fund by no later than 4:00pm (Tokyo Time) on a redemption day (the“ Repurchase Day” ).

The redemption price per unit shall be calculated by dividing the net asset value as at the
valuation day falling two business days prior to the relevant redemption day by the number of
units in issue on such valuation day, rounded naturally to two decimal places.

The minimum redemption amount per redemption is 1 Unit.

Transactions in the Distribution Class units for the year ended December 31, 2018 and net asset
value per unit is as follows:

Distribution Class

Number of units at December 31, 2017 886,613
Subscriptions 2,100
Redemptions (210,248)

Number of units at December 31, 2018 678,465

Net asset value at December 31, 2018 Usb 56,409,984

Net asset value per unit at December 31, 2018 usb 83.14

Transactions in the Non-distribution Class units for the year ended December 31, 2018 and net
asset value per unit is as follows:
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13. Capital (continued)

Non-distribution Class

Number of units at December 31, 2017 510,987
Subscriptions 36,140
Redemptions (244,461)

Number of units at December 31, 2018 302,666

Net asset value at December 31, 2018 Usb 30,442,052

Net asset value per unit at December 31, 2018 usb 100.58

14. Financial instruments and associated risks

The following summary of certain risk factors is not intended to be a comprehensive summary of
all risks inherent in the Fund.

At December 31, 2018, the Fund’ s sole investment was in the Master Fund and, as such, the Fund
is directly and materially affected by the performance and actions of the Master Fund.

Due to the nature of the “ master fund/feeder fund” structure, the Fund may be materially
affected by the actions of other feeder funds investing in the Master Fund.

Off-balance sheet, market and credit risks of the Master Fund’ s investments and activities are
discussed in the Master Fund’ s notes. The Fund’ s investment in the Master Fund exposes it to
various types of risk, which are associated with the financial instruments and markets in which
the Master Fund invests. Market risk represents the potential loss in value of financial
instruments caused by movements in market factors including, but not limited to, market
liquidity, investor sentiment and foreign exchange rates.

The Master Fund’ s portfolio consists of investments and derivatives that may trade in limited
markets or have restrictions on resale or transfer and may not be able to be liquidated on demand
if needed. Value assigned to these investments may differ significantly from the values that
would have been used had a ready market for the investments existed and such differences could be
material to the financial statements.
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14. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

At December 31, 2018, all cash and cash equivalents were held with Bank of New York Mellon.
Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is measured by the loss the Fund would record if Bank of
New York Mellon failed to perform pursuant to the terms of its obligations.

15. Commitments and contingencies

In the normal course of business, the Fund enters into contracts that contain a variety of
representations and warranties and which provide general indemnifications. The Fund’ s maximum
exposure under these arrangements is unknown, as this would involve future claims that may be
made against the Fund that have not yet occurred. However, based on experience, the Manager
expects the risk of loss to be remote.

16. Financial Highlights

Distribution Non-distribution
Class Class
Per unit operating performance
(For aunit outstanding during the year)
Net asset value, beginning of year usb 87.61 USD 102.14
Gain from operations:
Net investment income (a) 3.45 2.66
Net realised and unrealised loss from
investments, derivatives securities and (4.63) (4.22)
foreign currencies (b)
Distribution (3.29) -
Net asset value, end of the year usb 83.14 USD 100.58
Total return (c) (1.35%) (1.53%)
Percentages and supplemental data:
Ratios to average net assets:
Expense ratio (d) 2.15% 1.88%

Net investment income ratio (e) 3.95% 2.57%
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16. Financial Highlights (continued)

(a) Calculated by dividing net investment income by the average number of units outstanding
during the year.

(b) The amount in this caption may not agree to the change in aggregate gains and losses for the
year, as these figures are balancing amounts necessary to reconcile the change in net asset
value per unit information presented.

(c) Total return is not necessarily indicative of the Fund’ s performance as a whole. Individual
investor returns may differ depending on the timing of any subscription or redemption

transactions.

(d) The expense ratio is calculated based on the Fund’ s total expenses, including total expenses
allocated from Master Fund for the year as a percentage of average net assets.

(e) The net investment income ratio is calculated based on the Fund’ s net investment income as a
percentage of average net assets.

17. Subsequent Events

The Fund has evaluated subsequent events through May 31, 2019, the date the financial statements
were available to be issued. For the period January 1, 2019 through the date of this report,
there were no subscriptions, redemptions of USD 22,506,228 and distributions of USD 968,951 for
the Distribution Class. For the same period, there were no subscriptions, redemptions of USD
2,454,309 for the Non-distribution Class.

Pursuant to the Trust Deed, CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited and 1Q EQ Management
Bermuda Limited, act as Trustee and Manager to the Trust respectively. The Manager was formerly
known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited and changed its name to 1Q EQ Management Bermuda
Limited on 25 March 2019.
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2020
27,069,834.26 2,892,953,187
195,585.64 20,902,237
26,874,248.62 2,872,050,950
17,508,455.71 1,871,128,662
9,365,792.91 1,000,922,288

232,508

96,937
75.30 8,047
96.62 10,326
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2020

750,000 8,015

75
2015 750,000
2016 750,000
2017 750,000
2018 750,000
2019 750,000
2020 30 750,000

Q@
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1Q EQ 2020 10 EQ
4,000

90

2020 12

501,265,350.62

280,663,307.18

183,030,302.38

78,536,094,167
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2018 2017
2,776,023 296,674 2,997,260 320,317

108,904 11,639 394,868 42,200

2,884,927 308,312 3,392,128 362,517

(2,009, 880) (214,796)  (2,274,337) (243,058)

875,047 93,516 1,117,791 119,458

875,047 93,516 1,117,791 119,458

11 750,000 80,153 750,000 80,153
125,047 13,364 367,791 39,306

875,047 93,516 1,117,791 119,458

2019 30
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2018 2017
3,563,356 380,816 3,709,443 396,428
3,563,356 380,816 3,709,443 396,428

(3,303,296) (353,023)  (3,173,393) (339,141)

251,597 26,888 (137,917) (14,739)
511,657 54,681 398,133 42,548
14 1 16 2
(4,415) 472) (3.374) (361)
(4,401) (470) (3,358) (359)
507,256 54,210 394,775 42,190
507,256 54,210 394,775 42,190
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10 EQ
2018 12 31
2017 750,000 80,153 1,473,016 157,421 2,223,016 237,574
394,775 42,190 394,775 42,190
394,775 42,190 394,775 42,190
(1,500,000)  (160,305) (1,500,000)  (160,305)
(1,500,000)  (160,305) (1,500,000)  (160,305)
2017 12 31 750,000 80,153 367,791 39,306 1,117,791 119,458
2018 750,000 80,153 367,791 39,306 1,117,791 119,458
507,256 54,210 507,256 54,210
507,256 54,210 507,256 54,210
(750,000)  (80,153)  (750,000)  (80,153)
(750,000)  (80,153)  (750,000)  (80,153)
2018 12 31 750,000 80,153 125,047 13,364 875,047 93,516
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2018 2017
12 468,437 50,062 1,592,589 170,200
468,437 50,062 1,592,589 170,200

14 1 16 2

14 1 16 2

(4,415) 472) (3,374) (361)

(750,000) (80,153)  (1,500,000) (160, 305)

(754,415) (80,624)  (1,503,374) (160, 666)

(285,964) (30,561) 89,231 9,536

394,868 42,200 305,637 32,663

108,904 11,639 394,868 42,200

108,904 11,639 394,868 42,200
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10 EQ

2018 12 31

1Q EQ
102
102

102

@

102 2019

()]
10 EQ
100 10 EQ

©)
)

()
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@

@

)

)

2018 2017

( ) ( )
(251,597) 137,917
5,417 32,500

2018 2017 12 31 10 EQ
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2018 2017
( ) ( )
986,165 1,290,550
986,165 1,290,550
@)
2018 2017
( ) ( )
14 16
14 16
(b)
2018 2017
( ) ( )
(4,415) (3,374)
(4,415) (3,374)
()
2018 2017
( ) ( )
14 16
(4,415) (3,374)
(4,401) (3,358)

2035
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2018 2017
( ) ( )

317,110 356,159

2,458,913 2,632,851

- 8,250

2,776,023 2,997,260

2018 2017

( ) ( )

2,007,320 2,268,663

2,560 5,674

2,009,880 2,274,337
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2018 2018 2017 2017
( ) ( )
317,110 356,159
2,458,913 2,641,101
108,904 394,868
2,884,927 3,392,128
(2,560) (5.674)
(2,007,320) (2.268,663)
(2,009, 880) (2,274,337)
2018 2017
( ) ( )
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

750,000

750,000 750,000
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12
(€))
2018 2017
( ) ( )
507,256 394,775
4,401 3,358
511,657 398,133
221,237 545,350
(264,457) 649,106
468,437 1,592,589
(b)
2018 2017
( ) ( )
(288,519) 74,201
2,555 15,030
394,868 305,637
12 31 108,904 394,868
©
2018 2018 12 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
394,868 (288,519) 2,555 108,904
394,868 (288,519) 2,555 108,904
13
2017 12 31 2016
25
2018 18 1Q
EQ

10 EQ
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14
102 33.1
15
2019 25 10 EQ
10 EQ
16
10 EQ
2018 18 10 EQ
100 10 EQ
75008 68

2018 12 31

164/241



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOo0oDOo0ooo00boo0gOoOoo(EesL86)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Year ended 31 December 2018
Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2018

2018 2017
Note US$ US$
Current assets
Debtors 8 2,776,023 2,997,260
Cash at bank and in hand 108,904 394,868
2,884,927 3,392,128
Creditors amounts falling due within one year 9 (2,009,880) (2,274,337)
Net current assets 875,047 1,117,791
Net assets 875,047 1,117,791
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 11 750,000 750,000
Retained earnings 125,047 367,791
Total equity 875,047 1,117,791

The notes on pages 9 to 15 form part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 5 to 15 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 30 April

2019 and signed for on its behalf by:

[Signature] [Signature]

Director Director
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Year ended 31 December 2018
Statement of comprehensive income
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2018 2017
Note US$ US$
Turnover 3,563,356 3,709,443
Cost of sales - -
Gross Profit 3,563,356 3,709,443
Administrative expenses (3,303,296) (3,173,393)
Other operating gains/(losses) 251,597 (137,917)
Operating profit 4 511,657 398,133
Interest receivable and similar income 6a 14 16
Interest payable and similar charges 6b (4,415) (3,374)
Net interest expense 6C (4,401) (3,358)
Profit onordinary activities before taxation 507,256 394,775
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 7 - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 507,256 394,775

All activities relate to continuing operations.

The notes on pages 9 to 15 form part of these financial statements.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Year ended 31 December 2018
Statement of changes in equity
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Called up share Retained
capital earnings Total
Us$ Us$ Us$
Balance at 1 January 2017 750,000 1,473,016 2,223,016
Profit for the year - 394,775 394,775
Total comprehensive income for the year - 394,775 394,775
Dividends - (1,500,000) (1,500,000)
Total transactions with owners,
recognised directly in equity h (1,500,000) (1,500,000)
Balance as at 31 December 2017 750,000 367,791 1,117,791
Balance at 1 January 2018 750,000 367,791 1,117,791
Profit for the year - 507,256 507,256
Total comprehensive income for the year - 507,256 507,256
Dividends - (750,000) (750,000)
Total transactions with owners,
recognised directly in equity B (750, 000) (750,000)
Balance as at 31 December 2018 750,000 125,047 875,047
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Year ended 31 December 2018
Statement of cash flows
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2018 2017

Note US$ US$
Net cash from operating activities 12 468,437 1,592,589
Net cash generated from operating activities 468,437 1,592,589
Cash flow from investing activities
Interest received 14 16
Net cash from investing activities 14 16
Cash flow from financing activities
Interest paid (4,415) (3,374)
Dividends paid (750,000) (1,500,000)
Net cash used in financing activities (754,415) (1,503,374)
Net_(decrease)/lncrease in cash and cash (285,964) 89,231
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 394,868 305,637
year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 108,904 394,868
Cash and cash equivalents consists of:
Cash at bank and in hand 108,904 394,868

The notes on pages 9 to 15 form part of these financial statements.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

@

(b)

Summary of compliance

The individual financial statements of 1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited (formerly known as Moore
Management (Bermuda) Limited) (the” Company” ) have been prepared in compliance with United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102,“ The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland” (* FRS 102" ).

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated. The company has adopted FRS 102 in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the recognition of certain financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value.

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 3.

The Company has early adopted the amendments of FRS102 as a result of the triennial review, which
are effective from 1 January 2019.

Consolidation

Following the sale of 100% of the shareholding in 1Q EQ Holdings (Group 10M) Limited (formerly known
as First Names Holdings Limited), the previous ultimate parent, to 1Q EQ (FNG) Netherlands B. V.
(formerly known as SGG (FNG) Netherlands B_V.), the Company is controlled by FCPI Astorg V, and its
results are included within the consolidated financial statements of Saphilux Sarl.

These financial statements are the Company®s separate financial statements.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(c) Foreign currency

( ) Functional and presentational currency
The Company®s functional and presentational currency is United States Dollars.

( ) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the spot exchange
rate at the dates of the transactions.

At each period end foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate. Non-
monetary items measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction and non-monetary items measured at fair value are measured using the exchange rate when
fair value was determined.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of transactions and from the
translation at period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement within’ Other operating (losses)/gains."

(d) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable in respect of
services rendered from the provision of administration, corporate management, trustee services
together with ancillary services, net of any discounts and rebates al lowed by the Company, and
value added taxes. Revenue is recognised on an accruals basis, with deferral of any cash received in
advance. Deferred income is released to the income statement over the period to which it relates.

() Management recharge income/expense

Management recharges are calculated based on the services provided and costs incurred by/from
subsidiaries and other group entities during the year.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

( ) Management fees

Management fees are received from the investment funds under management as compensation for the
management services provided by the Company. Management fees vary from 0.0175% per quarter to 0.2%
per quarter of either the product of the initial unit price and the number of units in issue at a
Valuation Day coinciding with a Dealing Day, or of the Net Asset Value (all as defined in the
Offering Memoranda and/or Appendices of the relevant investment funds) for all funds. In some cases
these management fees are subject to a minimum and/or an additional fixed fee also exists.

( ) Consultancy fees

©)

Consultancy fees are received from the investment funds under management for services provided by
the Company relating to the set up or termination of an investment fund or sub fund. Such fees are
determined on a case by case basis.

Administrative expenses
Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis and included within operating expenditure.

( ) Management charge

Q)

@

Under the terms of a Group Services Agreement, a management charge is paid to 1Q EQ Group Services
(Jersey) Limited (formerly known as Moore Group Services Limited), a related party, as
compensation for certain management services provided to the Company. The management charge is
presented in the profit and loss account within operating costs.

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligationas a
result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Financial instruments

The company has chosen to adopt the Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial

instruments.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

( ) Financial assets
Basic financial assets, including trade and other receivables and cash and bank balances, are
initially recognised at transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes a financing
transaction, where the transaction is measured at the present value of the future receipts
discounted at a market rate of interest.

Such assets are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

At the end of each reporting period financial assets measured at amortised cost are assessed for
objective evidence of impairment. IT an asset is impaired the impairment loss is the difference
between the carrying amount and the present value of the estimated cash flows discounted at the
asset"s original effective interest rate. The impairment loss is recognised in profitor loss.

IT there is decrease in the impairment loss arising from an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the impairment is reversed. The reversal is such that the current carrying amount does
not exceed what the carrying amount would have been had the impairment not previously been
recognised. The impairment reversal is recognised in the income statement.

Financial assets are derecognised when (a) the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire or are settled, or (b) substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the asset
are transferred to another party or (c) despite having retained some significant risks and rewards
of ownership, control of the asset has been transferred to another party who has the practical
ability tounilaterally sell the asset to an unrelated third party without imposing additional
restrictions.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

( ) Financial liabilities

Basic financial liabilities, included trade and other payables, and amounts owed to group
undertakings are initially recognised at transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes a
financing transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the present value of the future
payments (net of directly attributable issue costs) discounted at the market rate of interest.
Issue costs are recognised in the income statement over the term of the debt on an effective
interest rate basis. Debt instruments are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method.

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade
payables are recognised initially at transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability is extinguished, that is when the
contractual obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.

( ) Offsetting

Q)

()

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amounts presented on the financial
statements when there is a legal ly enforceable right to set off the recognition amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new ordinary shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Distributions to equity holders

Dividends and other distributions to the Company®s shareholders are recognised as a liability in
the financial statements in the period inwhich the dividends and other distributions are approved
by the shareholders. These amounts are recognised in the statement of changes in equity.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

@

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Related party transactions

The Company discloses transactions with related parties which are not wholly owned within the same
Group. Where appropriate, transactions of a similar nature are aggregated unless, in the opinion of
the directors, separate disclosure is necessary to understand the effect of the transactions on the
Company financial statements.

Critical accounting judgements and estimation uncertainty

Estimates and judgements are continual ly evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Key accounting estimates and assumptions

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

( ) Accrued income

Accrued income is made up of fees accrued to the balance sheet date but yet to be billed which are
deemed to be recoverable. Judgement is used by management to assess the recoverability.

( ) Provisions

Provisions are made up of debtors which are not deemed to be recoverable. Judgement is used by
management to assess the recoverability of debtors.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

4

@

(b)

Operating profit
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2018 2017
Us$ Us$

Operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting):
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses (251,597) 137,917
Directors fees 5,417 32,500

For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 the audit fee of the Company was borne by 1Q EQ Group
Management (Isle of Man) Limited (formerly known as First Names Management Limited), an associated

company.

Employees and directors

Key management compensation

Key management includes the directors and members of senior management. The compensation paid or

payable by the Company or other affiliated companies to key management for employee services is

shown below:

2018 2017
Us$ Us$

Salaries and other short term benefits

986,165 1,290,550

986,165 1,290,550

Net interest expense

Interest received and similar income

2018 2017
Us$ Us$
Bank interest receivable 14 16
Total interest receivable and similar income 14 16
Interest payable and similar charges
2018 2017
Uss$ Us$
Other (4,415) (3,374)
Total interest expense on financial liabilities (4,415) (3,374)
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

6 Net interest expense (continued)

(c) Net interest expense
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2018 2017

Uss Us$

Interest receivable and similar income 14 16
Interest payable and similar charges (4,415) (3,374)
Net interest expense (4,401) (3,358)

7 Taxation on profit on ordinary activities

Under current Bermuda laws, the Company is not required to pay any taxes in Bermuda on either income

or capital gains. The Company has received an undertaking from the Minister of Finance in Bermuda

exempting it from any such taxes at least until the year 2035.

8 Debtors

2018 2017

Us$ Us$

Trade debtors and accrued income 317,110 356,159
Amounts owed by group undertakings 2,458,913 2,632,851
Prepayments - 8,250
2,776,023 2,997,260

Amounts due from group companies are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed date of repayment and

are repayable on demand.

9 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2018 2017

Us$ Us$

Amounts owed to group undertakings 2,007,320 2,268,663
Accruals and deferred income 2,560 5,674
2,009,880 2,274,337

Amounts due to group companies are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed date of repayment and are

repayable on demand.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
(formerly known as Moore Management (Berm

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

10 Financial instruments

The company has the fol lowing financ
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uda) Limited)

ial instruments:

2018 2018 2017 2017
Uss$ Uss$ Uss$ Uss$
Financial assets that are debt
instruments measured at
amortised cost
Trade receivables 317,110 356,159
Other receivables 2,458,913 2,641,101
Cash and cash equivalents 108,904 394,868
2,884,927 3,392,128
Financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost
Accruals and deferred income (2,560) (5,674)
Amounts owed to group
undertakings (2,007,320) (2,268,663)
(2,009,880) (2,274,337)
11 Share capital
2018 2017
us$ Uss$

Authorised,
1,000,000 common shares of US$1 each

Issued
750,000 common shares of US$1 each

1,000,000 1,000,000

750,000 750,000
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

12 Notes to the statement of cash flows

a) Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash from operating activities

2018 2017

Uss Us$

Profit for the financial year 507,256 394,775

Adjustments for:

Net interest expense 4,401 3,358

Operating profit 511,657 398,133
Working capital movements:

Decrease in debtors and prepayments 221,237 545,350

(Decrease)/increase in payables (264,457) 649,106

Cash flow from operating activities 468,437 1,592,589

b)  Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net funds

2018 2017

Uss Us$

(Decrease)/increase in cash in the year (288,519) 74,201

Translation difference 2,555 15,030

Net funds at 1 January 394,868 305,637

Net funds at 31 December 108,904 394,868

c) Analysis of change in net funds

At1l Cash Exchange 31 December

January 2018 flows movements 2018

Us$ uss Uss Us$

Cash at bank 394,868 (288,519) 2,555 108,904

Total 394,868 (288,519) 2,555 108,904
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

13 Commitments

As at 31 December 2017 the Company"s share capital had a charge over it, granted by the Company*s
then ultimate holding company shareholders, in favour of GLAS Trust Corporation Limited as
Security Agent on behal f of the Secured Parties, in order to provide security for a Facility
Agreement which had been entered into on 25 May 2016 in relation to the Group®s previous bank
facilities.

On 18 July 2018, the Company"s previous ultimate controlling party sold its holding in the
Company*s previous ultimate holding company, 1Q EQ Holdings (Group 10M) Limited (formerly known as
First Names Holdings Limited), to 1Q EQ (FNG) Netherlands B.V. (formerly known as SGG (FNG)
Netherlands B.V.) and at this time the charge over the Company"s share was released as part of the

transaction.
14 Related party transactions

Transactions with other wholly owned subsidiaries within the Group are not disclosed as the Company
has taken advantage of the exemption in section 33.1A of FRS102.

17 Subsequent events

On 25 March 2019 the SGG Group re-branded to 1Q EQ Group and the majority of the entity names in the
group have been changed. The Company has changed its name to 1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited.

15 Controlling parties

The Company*"s immediate parent undertaking is 1Q EQ Group Holdco (Jersey) Limited (formerly known
as Moore Group Limited), a company incorporated in Jersey

On 18 July 2018, 100% of the shareholding in 1Q EQ Holdings (Group 10M) Limited (formerly known as
First Names Holdings Limited), the previous ultimate parent, was sold to 1Q EQ (FNG) Netherlands
B.V. (formerly known as SGG (FNG) Netherlands B.V.). Following the acquisition, the ultimate
controlling party is FCPI Astorg V, a French closed ended col lective investment scheme in which no
individual investor hold a controlling interest. The scheme is managed by Astorg Partners, a
Societe par actions simplifiee incorporated and existing under the laws of France, having its
registered office at 68 Rue du Faubourg Saint-Honore, 75008 Paris.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

15 Controlling parties (continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the ultimate holding company into which the results are consolidated is
Saphilux Sarl (a Luxembourg entity). The ultimate controlling party is FCPI Astorg V, a French
closed ended collective investment scheme inwhich no individual investor hold a controlling

interest.
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2019 30 2018 30
3,093,877 330,643 3,311,341 353,883
150,064 16,037 230,729 24,658
3,243,941 346,680 3,542,070 378,541
(719,341) (76,876) (540,518) (57,765)
2,524,600 269,804 3,001,552 320,776
2,524,600 269,804 3,001,552 320,776
750,000 80,153 750,000 80,153
1,774,600 189,652 2,251,552 240,623
2,524,600 269,804 3,001,552 320,776
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30
2019 1 1 2018 1 1
2019 6 30 2018 6 30
1,467,746 156,858 1,775,044 189,699
1,467,746 156,858 1,775,044 189,699
(13,798) (1,475) (16,995) (1,816)
197,249 21,080 127,943 13,673
1,651,197 176,463 1,885,992 201,556
1 0 11 1
(1,645) (176) (2,242) (240)
(1,644) (176) (2,231) (238)
1,649,553 176,288 1,883,761 201,318
1,649,553 176,288 1,883,761 201,318
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1Q EQ
2019 6 30
2018 1 1 750,000 80,153 367,791 39,306 1,117,791 119,458
2018 6 30
- - 1,883,761 201,318 1,883,761 201,318
- - 1,883,761 201,318 1,883,761 201,318
2018 6 30 750,000 80,153 2,251,552 240,623 3,001,552 320,776
2018 12 31
- - (1,376,505)  (147,107) (1,376,505)  (147,107)
- - (1,376,505)  (147,107) (1,376,505)  (147,107)
- - (750,000)  (80,153)  (750,000)  (80,153)
- - (750,000)  (80,153)  (750,000)  (80,153)
2018 12 31 750,000 80,153 125,047 13,364 875,047 93,516
2019 1 1 750,000 80,153 125,047 13,364 875,047 93,516
2019 6 30
- - 1,649,553 176,288 1,649,553 176,288
- - 1,649,553 176,288 1,649,553 176,288
2019 6 30 750,000 80,153 1,774,600 189,652 2,524,600 269,804
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2019 30 2018 30

45,442 4,856 (168,792) (18,039)
45,442 4,856 (168,792) (18,039)

1 0 11 1

1 0 11 1
(1,645) (176) (2,242) (240)
(1,645) (176) (2,242) (240)
43,798 4,681 (171,023) (18,277)

108,904 11,639 394,868 42,200

(2.638) (282) 6,884 736

150,064 16,037 230,729 24,658

150,064 16,037 230,729 24,658
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- 5,417
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2019 2018 12 31 10 EQ
@
2019 2018
11
11
()
2019 2018
(1,645) (2.,242)
(1,645) (2,242)
©
2019 2018
1 11
(1,645) (2.242)
(1,644) (2,231)
2035
2019 2018
303,450 331,567
2,787,132 2,976,637
3,295 3,137
3,093,877 3,311,341
1
2019 2018
713,339 530,469
6,002 10,049
719,341 540,518
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2019 2018
303,450 331,567
2,790,427 2,979,774
150,064 230,729
3,243,941 3,542,070
(6,002) (10,049)
(713,339) (530, 469)
(719,341) (540,518)
2019 2018
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
750,000 750,000 750,000
@
2019 2018
1,649,553 1,883,761
1,644 2,231
2,638 (6,884)
1,653,835 1,879,108
(317,854) (314,081)
(1,290,539) (1,733,819)
45,442 (168,792)
(b)
2019 2018
43,798 (171,023)
(2,638) 6,884
109,804 394,868
30 150,064 230,729
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©
2019 2019
11 6 30
108,904 43,798 (2,638) 150,064
108,904 43,798 (2,638) 150,064
12.
2018 30 2016
25
2018 18 1Q
EQ
10 EQ
15
13.
102 33.1
14.
2019 25 10 EQ
10 EQ
15.
2019 31
16.
10 EQ
2018 18 10 EQ
100 10 EQ
75008 68

2019 30
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1 CIBC Bank and Trust
Company Cayman Limited

2020 25,920,000 28

1965

2020

) BNY Mellon Fund Management
(Cayman) Limited

2019 12 60 6,412
1996
( (
(
( ( (
(
3 The Bank of New York Mellon
2019 12 11 3,500 1,213

35 100
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4 The Bank of New York Mellon,
Singapore Branch

G
The Bank of New York Mellon

6

2020 10
(6

2020 10
&

2020 125,167
¢!
2 BNY Mellon Fund Management

(Cayman) Limited

G
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Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of US Bank Loan Open (USD) (the "Fund'™), a series trust of
Mizuho Cayman Trust, which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities as at December 31,
2018, the statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, inall material respects,
the financial position of the Fund as at December 31, 2018, and its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with U.S. general ly accepted accounting
principles.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (*1SAs”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditors” Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Fund in
accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“ IESBA Code”) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities inaccordance with these requirements and the IESBA
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Fund"s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Fund
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Fund®s financial reporting
process.

Auditors® Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors” report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

229/241



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOo0oDOo0ooo00boo0gOoOoo(EesL86)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting fromerror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund"s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund"s
ability to continue as a going concern. I we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditors” report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors” report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

KPMG
May 31, 2019
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Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of US Bank Loan Open (USD) (the "Fund'™), a series trust of
Mizuho Cayman Trust, which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities as at December 31,
2019, the statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, inall material respects,
the financial position of the Fund as at December 31, 2019, and its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with U.S. general ly accepted accounting
principles.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (*1SAs”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditors” Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Fund in
accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“ IESBA Code”) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities inaccordance with these requirements and the IESBA
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Fund"s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Fund
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Fund®s financial reporting
process.

Auditors® Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors” report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting fromerror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund"s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund"s
ability to continue as a going concern. I we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditors” report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors” report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

KPMG
May 29, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®™S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 1Q EQ MANAGEMENT BERMUDA LIMITED (FORMERLY
KNOWN AS MOORE MANAGEMENT (BERMUDA) LIMITED)

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of 1Q EQ
Management Bermuda Limited (formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited) (the “Company™)
as at 31 December 2018, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 "The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland™ (“FRS 102").

What we have audited
The Company”s financial statements comprise:

e the balance sheet as at 31 December 2018;

e the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

e the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

e the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (*1SAs”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor”s responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants® Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“ IESBA Code™) . We have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the I1ESBA Code.
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Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the
information included in the Directors” report and financial statements but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor"s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be material ly misstated. 1T, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company"s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor"s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting fromerror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company*”s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors” use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company"s ability to continue as a
going concern. Ifwe conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor®s report to the related disclosures in the financial statementsor, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor”s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the members as a body and for
no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other
purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where
expressly agreed by our prior consent inwriting.

PricewaterhouseCoopers CI LLP
Chartered Accountants

Jersey, Channel Islands

1 May 2019
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